
 

 

Village of Egg Harbor 

Utility Committee Meeting Minutes 

November 19
th

, 2019 at 11:00 a.m. 

Paul J. Bertschinger Community Center  

7860 STH 42, Egg Harbor, WI 54209 
 

1. Call to order and approval of the agenda  

Heller called the meeting to order at 11:00 a.m.  Those in attendance were John Heller, Mack 

Bonk, Tom Prohl, TC Johnson, Tom Strong, Bert Sawyer, Ryan Heise, and Megan 

Vandermause. Also in attendance were Tom Kispert, from McMahon Engineering, and 

Lauren Schar.  

 

Heller moved to approve the agenda, second by Prohl, motion carried.  

 

2. Approve October 15th, 2019 meeting minutes  

Heller moved to approve the October 15th, 2019 meeting minutes, second by Bonk, motion 

carried.  

 

3. Open Session (Limited to Ten Minutes) 

 Johnson stated that he had spoken to Heller the other day about possibly doing 

something for Adolf Walser as a thank you for all of his work on the Utility 

Committee.  

 Heller stated that Walser is currently in a care facility and he is doing well.  

 Staff can take care of getting a gift put together for Walser, and Strong suggested 

maybe presenting the gift to Walser at the holiday party.  

 

4. Update on addendum to McMahon contract for solar power incorporation  

 Kispert stated that he did send an email to staff with some information on 

incorporation of solar, and if the Village would like something more formal put 

together, McMahon can do that.  

 Heller reviewed some information regarding incorporation of solar into the 

improvement project.  

 Heller stated that the estimated payback is 20.49 years. 

 Bonk asked if the Village can count on the projections.   

 Kispert stated that these projections were based off of an aerial photograph of the site.  

 Heller asked if McMahon put together the projections, and Kispert stated that the 

solar company put these projections together.  

 Johnson asked if this is something that other communities are doing, and Kispert 

stated that this isn’t something everyone is doing but there are other communities in 

the state that have done this.  

 Heller stated that he and Sawyer spoke to Prairie du Chien which has solar at their 

facility.  

 Sawyer stated that he spoke to the administrator there and they really like their solar 

project because they had the space to install enough solar panels to offset their 

electric bill.  



 

 

 Sawyer stated that this administrator said that he would do another solar project, but 

mentioned that they sized the panels a little larger than what was needed to create 

extra energy to be sold back to WPS but would not recommend this.   

 Sawyer stated that he is not sure if the plant has enough space to add enough panels 

to offset the electrical cost, and Heller stated that some panels could be put behind the 

reed beds.  

 Heller stated that the cost benefit is going to be the same regardless of how many 

panels are installed because if the Village were to upsize the solar array to provide 

100% of the power this would mean an additional expenditure on the equipment and 

the payback ratio would remain the same.   

 Heise stated that he does not know if he agrees with this comment because there is a 

lot of administrative costs that would remain the same and mobilization costs that 

would remain the same regardless of the amount of panels installed.  

 Heise stated that he thinks the more panels that can be added into the space the better 

the payback will be. 

 Heller reviewed the projected costs of solar incorporation into the project.   

 Strong stated that he thinks a 20 year payback is a little bit long and he would rather 

see a 10 year payback.  

 Heller stated that he doesn’t think he would agree with that because as a government 

entity the Village needs to look at where they can invest their money.  

 Strong stated that he is in favor of the concept and he thinks that the summer has the 

most energy consumption and this would be the season in which the solar panels 

would create the most energy.  

 Sawyer stated that Strong might be wrong here because there is electric heat at the 

plant so the most energy consumption could take place in the winter.  

 Johnson asked if it takes a lot of sunny days for the solar panels to be efficient, and 

Kispert stated that the solar panels maximize their productivity when it is sunny.  

 Strong stated that the typical projections do take into consideration the normal 

weather conditions of the proposed project’s climate.  

 Strong stated that the Sturgeon Bay High School posts the results of their solar panels 

online.  

 Strong stated that the Door County Economic Development Corporation is looking 

into adding solar panels to their facility but their project is about 1/10th the size of the 

Village’s project.  

 The DCEDC’s projected payback is 7 years but the upfront costs will be lower than 

the Village’s.  

 Kispert said the area north of the reed beds could be cleared out and this area would 

make much more sense for installation.  

 Kispert stated that the panels are typically set up in long rows and the central area by 

the treatment plant could be difficult for installation because this land is on a slope.  

 Kispert said that one of the first steps is to have a certified solar engineer come and 

visit the site and make a recommendation on the installation area.  

 Bonk asked if there is pipe in this area, and Kispert stated that he thinks this area is 

very bare because when the treatment plant was originally laid out this area was 

always proposed for plant expansion.   

 The committee discussed that solar technology is always evolving.  



 

 

 Heise stated that the Village can tap into their Green Tier network and see which 

other communities have installed solar, how they got it done, and what resources they 

might be able to offer.  

 Heise stated that the committee does have support from the Village Trustees on the 

project.  

 Heise stated that his recommendation would be to keep moving ahead on this.  

 Heller stated that he is not sure if the Village should invest the money before 

knowing all the facts.  

 Heller asked if Kispert can get some solar engineers to visit the site and complete an 

assessment of the site.  

 Bonk asked if it makes sense to plan to install solar in the area north of the reed beds.  

 Heise stated that he thinks this space is very viable.  

 Heller stated that he thinks it is important to pay a solar engineer to come in and give 

the Village a firm idea on what the payback is going to be. 

 Heller stated that the Village wouldn’t have to do everything all at once.  

 Bonk stated that to Heise’s point there is savings in mobilization costs and 

administrative costs only being paid once.  

 Heller asked Kispert if bringing in an engineer seems like a doable thing, and Kispert 

stated that the he thinks this could be done.  

 Kispert stated that if the Village brings in two different firms they are going to have 

similar ideas but different ways of doing things because of their experience.  

 Kispert stated then ultimately if the Village decides to go with one of these firms, the 

Village would have been paying this fee anyway so really the only cost that will be 

lost is the comparison.  

 Bonk asked if this is one of the deals where there is a transformer on site to take what 

the power is generated and directly use that in the switch gear at the plant.  

 The heaters and the aeration system are using the most energy in the winter and in the 

summer there are more loadings using more energy.  

 The Egg Harbor WWTP power usage is more of a level line than other plants.  

 Heller asked if the committee can direct Kispert to contact a couple contractors to get 

prices for the assessment.  

 Kispert stated that these contractors would contract directly with the Village to come 

to the site and do an assessment.  

 

Heller moved to direct McMahon Engineering to contact several solar array companies to get 

an estimate to come to the WWTP and make a determination and recommendation on what 

size system to put in, what the best location is on site, and what payback the Village might see 

regarding solar installation, second by Prohl, motion carried. 

 

 Strong stated that the DCEDC has been working with NWTC regarding their solar 

program and students helping with the installation, which could be discussed for the 

Village’s project in the future.  

  

5. Correspondence from Attorney Kalny regarding REU classification categories 

 Heller stated that basically the Attorney said that the Trustees are responsible for 

determining the categories for REUs. 

 Heller asked if 150 gallons/day or 300 gallons/day is used in the formulas.   



 

 

 Kispert stated that the baseline formula referenced in the original plant operation 

documents was created back in the 80s not by McMahon.  

 Kispert stated that for a residence the flow rate is 300 gallons/ day.  

 Kispert stated that to him this doesn’t seem out of the ordinary at all.  

 Sawyer stated that he thinks that in the document that Heller has from Robert E Lee 

they were using 150 gallons/day because the REUs were so much higher.  

 The committee stated that it doesn’t matter what the numbers are as long as they are 

relative to each other.  

 Heller stated that the Village is supposed to be doing an audit every year to readjust 

the calculations.  

 Prohl stated that from what he understands from the attorney’s letter is that the 

committee can make recommendations to the Village Board for categories of REU 

calculations.  

 Staff will bring the committee’s recommendation on restaurant seating and short term 

rentals REU calculations to the Village Board at their next meeting.  

 Schar stated that she would encourage the committee to treat seasonality as 

seasonality across the board because some aspects of her business do not operate the 

same in the off season.  

 Schar stated that she thinks it would be interesting to see something based on fact and 

not just best guesses.  

 Strong stated that he and Prohl did the review of all of the classifications and 

categories and when they reviewed these categories their main objective was to make 

things equitable.  

 Strong explained that any business has the opportunity to come and present their case 

to the Utility Committee and for good cause the Utility Committee could make an 

adjustment.  

 Strong stated that the Utility Committee is trying to make the system as equitable as 

possible for everyone that is tied into the system.  

 Strong stated that he agrees that the system needs to be as equitable and fair as it can 

be for everyone.  

 Schar said that she thinks seasonality as a definition should be the same across the 

board, regardless of the location of seats.  

 Schar explained that for example she has an event space in her business that is not 

used daily and only really used seasonally.  

 Schar said that the Utility Committee is taking nothing in consideration that there 

might be half the business in the winter. Heise stated that really the ability to use the 

sanitary system is what everything is built off of.  

 Heise said that a few years ago the Village ended up eliminating the seasonal use of 

residential properties because people do come back and use their facilities or could 

come back and use the facilities.  

 The Utility Committee discussed businesses paying less in the winter because they 

are only doing half the business, and Sawyer stated then the rates would have to be 

raised in the summer.  

 Schar stated that in reviewing the definitions of the categories of the REUs and 

giving seasonality for certain categories like outdoor seating. Private event spaces 

have the same seasonality as an outdoor seat.  

 The committee explained that outdoor seats where never accounted for before.  



 

 

 Schar stated that she thinks the way the committee is proposing to count seats is a 

very fair estimation and her request is that this is applied everywhere.  

 Sawyer stated that the difference is that the seats in the even space can be used in the 

winter if the business wanted to whereas outdoor seats cannot be used in the winter.   

 The committee discussed the possibility of a new category of private event spaces.  

 Strong stated that he is in favor of keeping the classification as simple as possible but 

allowing the businesses to come in and make a case on why they should be treated 

differently.  

 Strong stated that there are thirteen different categories for usage classifications and 

he thinks that some of the classification is only used for one business in the 

community.  

 Strong stated that the appeal mechanism is in place for specific cases.  

 

6. Seasonal rates for short term rentals  

 Strong stated that if the short term rental category is approved by the Village Board 

he would recommend treating this as a business class which should be treated as 

every other business class.  

 If the property is not used at all for 6 months, then they would be eligible for seasonal 

rates.  

 

Strong moved that the committee recommend to the Trustees that if they approve the short 

term rental classification these properties should be open to the seasonal rates under the same 

provisions as other business categories, second by Prohl, motion carried.  

 

7. Wastewater Treatment Plant Manager report 

 The report was included in the agenda packet.  

 The plant is running really clean.  

 The flows for October were up about 300,000 gallons from the haulers.   

 At the end of October, the plant passed the total flows from all of 2018. 

 Sawyer stated that the WI DNR and the EPA will be visiting the plant.  

 Last week a lateral was fixed on West Shore Drive which Sawyer believes there was 

some water coming in from.  

 Sawyer asked if the DNR needed any information and they sent four pages of 

questions that staff needs to answer before they arrive.  

 Sawyer will give the committee and update next month on how everything goes.  

 October hauler amounts were up by 20.66% and year to date up by 17.3%. 

 In large rain events, Sturgeon Bay has shut down there hauler in flow because of the 

amount of water they have coming in.  

 

8. 7881 STH 42 REU assignment  

 

Prohl moved to reassess 7881 STH 42 as a residential property at 1 REU, second by 

Johnson, motion carried.  

 

9. Next Meeting Time and Date 

The next meeting is December 17th, 2019 at 11:00 a.m.  

 



 

 

10. Adjourn   
Heller moved to adjourn at 12:09 p.m., second by Prohl, motion carried.  


